D95 Wapp

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILLU
SID J. WAITE
OCT 19 1992
CLERK, SUPREME COURT
Chief Deputy Clerk

BENJAMIN BILLER,	
Petitioner,	
vs.	
STATE OF FLORIDA,	
Respondent.	

CASE NO. 800/3
Fourth DCA Case No. 91-3446

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

RICHARD L. JORANDBY
Public Defender
15th Judicial Circuit
Criminal Justice Building
421 3RD Street/6th Floor
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
(407) 355-7600

ROBERT FRIEDMAN Assistant Public Defender

Counsel for Petitioner

TABLE	OF	CON	TENTS

CONTENTS																							P	AGE
TABLE OF C	CONTE	NTS				•	•	•		•			•	•		•		•	•	•	•	•	•	i
AUTHORITIE	es ci	TED	•		•					•			•						•					ii

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the defendant in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Broward County, Florida, and the appellant in the District Court of Appeal, Fourth District. Respondent was the prosecution and appellee in the lower courts. The parties will be referred to as they appear before this Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioner, Benjamin Biller, was convicted of carrying a concealed firearm and weapon. At sentencing, the trial court imposed as a condition of probation that Petitioner not use or possess alcoholic beverages during his probationary term (Al).

On August 12, 1992, the Fourth District Court of Appeal upheld the trial court's condition of probation that Petitioner not use or possess alcoholic beverages during his probationary term. In so doing, the district court concluded that the trial did not abuse its discretion in imposing such a condition of probation even though there was nothing in the record before them which specifically related Petitioner's crime or conduct to alcohol. The Fourth District did note, however, that their opinion may be in conflict with Stonebraker v. State, 594 So.2d 351 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991). Judge Anstead dissented without opinion (Al-A3).

On August 26, 1992, Petitioner filed a motion for rehearing and/or express certification of conflict. On September 10, 1992 the Fourth District Court of Appeal denied Petitioner's motion for rehearing and/or express certification of conflict (A4). Petitioner timely filed a notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The decision, at bar, expressly and directly conflicts with the Second District's decision in <u>Stonebraker v. State</u>, 594 So.2d 351 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991). The Fourth District noted that <u>Stonebraker</u> may be in conflict with its written opinion herein. Thus, Petitioner has properly invoked the conflict jurisdiction of this Court.

ARGUMENT

PETITIONER HAS PROPERLY INVOKED THE JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT SINCE THE OPINION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

To properly invoke the "conflict certiorari" jurisdiction of this Court, Petitioner must demonstrate that there is "express and direct conflict" between the decision challenged herein, and those holdings of other Florida appellate courts or this Court on the same rule of law to produce a different result than other state appellate courts faced with the substantially same facts. <u>Dodi Publishing v. Editorial America, S.A.</u>, 385 So.2d 1369 (Fla. 1980); <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980); Article v, § 3(b)(3), <u>Fla. Const.</u> (1980); <u>Fla.R.App.P.</u> 9.030(a)(2)(iv).

In the present case, the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly found that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in imposing the condition of probation upon Petitioner that he not use or possess alcohol during his probationary term even though there was nothing in the record that specifically related petitioner's crime or conduct of carrying a concealed firearm and weapon to alcohol. The opinion of the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with the Second District's decision in Stonebraker v. State, 594 So.2d 351 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991). In Stonebraker, the defendant was convicted of grand theft and he was placed on probation with a special condition that restricted his use of alcohol and his visitation of premises upon which alcohol or intoxicants were sold. The district court struck down

this condition as being unrelated to the crime of grand theft for which he was convicted.

A condition of probation must be reasonably related to the offense in which a defendant is convicted or reasonably related to prevent future criminal conduct. A trial court cannot impose a condition of probation restricting non criminal conduct. Rodriquez v. State, 378 So.2d 7 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979); Wilkinson v. State, 388 So.2d 1322 (Fla. 5th DCA 1980); Cole v. State, 521 So.2d 297 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988).

The opinion by the Second District in <u>Stonebraker</u> is expressly and directly in conflict with the Fourth District herein on the same question of law. Thus, the <u>Biller</u> opinion expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal. Petitioner has validly invoked the conflict jurisdiction of this Court in the instant case.

Petitioner respectfully requests this Honorable Court to grant his petition for review and reverse the decision of the lower court.

CONCLUSION

The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal herein expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal on the same question of law. This Honorable Court should grant Petitioner's request for jurisdiction and hear this cause on the merits.