PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, Benjamin Biller, the criminal defendant and appellant below in the appended <u>Biller v. State</u>, 17 F.L.W. D1873 (Fla. 4th DCA August 12, 1992), will be referred to as "Petitioner." Respondent, the State of Florida, the prosecuting authority and appellee below, will be referred to as "the State" or "Respondent."

No references to the record on appeal will be either necessary or appropriate.

Any emphasis will be supplied by the State.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondent accepts that Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts.

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION/SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner seeks to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Honorable Court under Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Constitution of the State of Florida and Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) to review <u>Biller v. State</u> on grounds that this decision allegedly conflicts with <u>Stonebraker v. State</u>, 594 So.2d 351 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1991).

No basis for juridiction exists.

• .

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION BY THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH <u>STONEBRAKER</u>

Petitioner seeks to establish this Court's "conflict" jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) <u>Fla.Const.</u> (1980), alleging that the decision below conflicts with <u>Stonebraker v. State</u>, 594 So.2d 351 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1992). Respondent disagrees as the decision <u>sub judice</u> on its face, does not expressly and directly conflict with <u>Stonebraker</u>, as a result, this Honorable Court lacks jurisdiction to grant Petitioner's application for discretionary review.

Under Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution this Court may review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law. Thus, "conflict" jurisdiction is properly invoked when: 1) the district court announces a rule of law which conflicts with a rule previously announced by the Supreme Court or by another district, or 2) the district court applies a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involves substantially the same facts as another case. <u>Mancini v.</u> State, 312 So.2d 732, 733 (Fla. 1975).

In order for two court decision to be in express and direct conflict for the purpose of invoking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction under 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), the

3

decisions should speak to the same point of law, in factual contexts of sufficient similarity to compel the conclusion that the result in each case would have been different had the deciding court employed the reasoning of the other court. See generally Mancini v. State, supra; Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980). It is the cases' holding which is dispostitive for "conflict" jurisdiction. While a district court cannot thoroughly misapply a precedent of another court and then escape conflict certiorari review of its decision, see Ascensio v. State, 497 So.2d 640, 641 (Fla. 1986), this is not what happened here. "Obviously, two cases cannot be in conflict if they can be validly distinguished." Morningstar v. State, 405 So.2d 778, 783 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981), affirmed, 428 So.2d 220 (Fla. 1982), cert. denied, 464 U.S. 821 (1983). A careful review of the decision with which the decision below is alleged to conflict will reveal that they are legally consistent therewith.

Petitioner agrees with the Fourth District Court in the general principal of law. A condition of probation must be reasonably related to the offense in which a defendant is convicted <u>or</u> reasonably related to the past or future criminality of the probationer. (Petitioner's Brief page 5). The use of the conjunctive "or" is important. A condition of probation must be reasonably related to <u>either</u> 1) the offense for which the defendant is convicted <u>or</u> 2) to the past or future criminality of the probationer. This recognizes the well settled principal that the primary purpose of probation

4

is to rehabilitate the individual while he is at liberty under supervision. <u>Bernhardt v. State,</u> 288 So.2d 490 (Fla. 1974).

Under the facts of Stonebraker, the appellate court held that the imposition of a condition of probation that a defendant not use or possess alcoholic beverages was unrelated to the crime of grand theft. Although this may be true, the Fourth District Court <u>sub judice</u> held that this same condition of probation "may be related to the past or future criminality of the defendant or where it is used as a tool for rehabilitation." The Fourth District Court found that, under the facts <u>sub judice</u>, the trial court's imposition of this condition reasonably related to the future criminal conduct of the Petitioner.

Whereas, <u>Stonebraker</u> related to number 1) above (the activity restrict does not relate to the crime the defendant is convicted), <u>Biller</u> relates to number 2) above (the activity restrict does relate to the future criminality of the defendant). Consequently, the Fourth District's decision in <u>Biller</u> is legally consistent with, rather than in conflict with, the <u>Stonebraker</u> case. That is why the Fourth District Court of Appeal denied the Petitioner's motion for rehearing and/or express certification of conflict on September 10, 1992. The decision <u>sub judice</u> does not expressly and directly conflict with <u>Stonebraker</u>. The cases are distinguishable. Hence, this Court may not exercise its conflict certiorari jurisdiction to reveiw <u>Biller</u>. <u>See</u>

5

<u>Jenkins v.</u> <u>State, supra.</u> The fact that the Petitioner disagrees with the Fourth District's resolution of his case does not change matters.

CONCLUSION

WHREFORE Respondent, the Stte of Florida, respectfully submits that this Honorable Court must summarily DENY the petition for writ of conflict certiorari.